Public Document Pack

AGENDA
NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only

Committee

-

LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP
PARTNERSHIP
BOARD

Date & Time

-

Thursday, 7th October, 2010 at 2.00 pm

Venue

-

Anglia Room, The Committee Suite, Elizabeth
House, Dereham

REPRESENTATIVE
Councillor William Nunn (Chairman)
David Ovenden (Vice-Chairman)
Debbie Bartlett
Ian Clarke
Jonathan Clemo
Tony Dickens
Andrew Egerton-Smith
Jan Godfrey
Andrew Heginbotham
Brian Horner
Valerie Jenkins
Mr Richard Lewis
Shirley Matthews
Dave Seaton
Neil Stott
Lucy Walker
Caroline Williams
Councillor Adrian Stasiak

ORGANISATION
Breckland
Dereham Area Partnership
Norfolk County Council
Eastern Daily Press
Norfolk Rural Community Council
Iceni Partnership, Swaffham
Norfolk PCT
Wayland Partnership
Norfolk Fire Service
Voluntary Norfolk
Norfolk Police Authority
Faiths Council
Norfolk Association of Local Councils
Peddars Way Housing Association
Keystone Development Trust
Learning Skills Council
Norfolk Chamber of Commerce
Breckland

Member Services
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke,
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE
Date: Thursday, 30 September 2010

Please ask for Helen McAleer: Telephone (01362) 656381
e-mail: helen.mcaleer@breckland.gov.uk

LSP Board
7 October 2010

Page(s)
herewith

1.

MINUTES

1-7

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on the 29 July 2010.
2.

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence.

3.

URGENT BUSINESS
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any items of urgent
business.

4.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST
Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests they may have in
any of the following items on the agenda.

5.

PERFORMANCE REPORTING

a)

Pride in Breckland Project

8 - 15

Report by Richard Wills, Pride Co-ordinator.

b)

Thetford Healthy Town
Verbal update by Tony Trotman, Programme Manager.

c)

Migration Impacts funding

16 - 26

Report and presentation by Adam Jackson, Service Connector
Manager.

d)

Future Jobs Fund
To receive a presentation by Richard Wills, Pride Co-ordinator.

6.

PARTICIPATORY BUDGETING (PB)

27 - 28

To receive a report from Terry Scott, Breckland Operational Partnership
Team.
7.

COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP (CSP)

29 - 40

To receive a report from Rob Walker, Director of Community Services.
8.

THE BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP - THE FUTURE
To receive a report from Mark Fretwell, Partnership (LSP) Officer.

9.

BUDGET
To receive an update on Partnership finances by Mark Fretwell, Partnership
(LSP) Officer.

41 - 45

LSP Board
7 October 2010
10.

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS
To agree items for inclusion on the next or a future agenda.

11.

FUTURE MEETINGS
To note that the next meeting of the LSP Board will be held on 2 December
2010 at 2.00 pm in the Anglia Room, Elizabeth House, Breckland Council.
Future meeting dates (for information):
3 February, 7 April, 19 May, 21 July, 22 September and 24 November 2011.
All meetings commence at 2.00pm in the Anglia Room.

Agenda Item 1

Public Document Pack
BRECKLAND COUNCIL
At a Meeting of the

LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD
Held on Thursday, 29 July 2010 at 2.00 pm in
Norfolk Room, The Committee Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham
PRESENT
Mr J.W. Nunn (Chairman)
Mrs J. Godfrey
Mr D. Harry (In place of Ms D. Bartlett)
Mr G. Hayes (In place of Mr D. Ovenden)
Mr B. Horner
Mrs V. Jenkins
Mr J. D. Rogers
C Wake (In place of Mrs S. Matthews)

Breckland
Wayland Partnership
Norfolk DAAT
Dereham Area Partnership (Substitute)
Voluntary Norfolk
Norfolk Police Authority
Norfolk County Council
Norfolk Association of Local Councils

ALSO PRESENT
Mr. P. Haystead

Norfolk Police Authority

In Attendance
Mark Fretwell
Helen McAleer
Robert Leigh

-

Pam Sayle

-

LSP Officer
Senior Committee Officer
Assistant Director, Communications
and Communities
Corporate Consultation and
Communications Officer
Action By

27/10 MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2010 were confirmed as a
correct record.
28/10 MATTERS ARISING
There were no matters arising.
29/10 APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Debbie Bartlett, Ian Clarke,
Jon Clemo, Tony Dickens, Supt Fawcett, David Ovenden, Shirley
Matthews, Dave Seaton and Rob Walker.
Daniel Harry, Sadie Harvey, Lucinda Leonard and Cynthia Wake were
present as substitutes.
30/10 DECLARATION OF INTEREST
No declarations were made.

1

1

Local Strategic Partnership Board
29 July 2010
Action By

31/10 PERFORMANCE REPORTING

(a)

Pride in Breckland Project
The Partnership (LSP) Officer presented the report on behalf of the
Pride Co-ordinator.
He drew attention to some of the projects including the world record
attempt using plastic bottles, which had highlighted environmental
protection issues and the Breckland Junior Masterchef competition,
which had followed the format of the BBC programme and received
good publicity.
Amongst the future projects listed, attention was drawn to the Pride in
Breckland Awards to be held in 2011 which would be hosted by RAF RW
Marham.
The report was noted.

(b)

Thetford Healthy Town
Tony Trotman, Programme Manager for Thetford Healthy Town, gave
a PowerPoint presentation outlining the background, objectives and
current projects being undertaken.
He advised Partners that the Health Needs Assessment had just been
received and was being looked at in detail. Copies would be
distributed to all Partners, along with the Workers on the Move 3
report which would be published in September.
He explained that the programme was due to finish next March and it
was important to ensure that everything did not just stop then.
Projects needed to be sustainable and on-going leaving a valuable
legacy for the people of Thetford.
He then highlighted some of the projects that were now in their
second quarter and gave some case study examples. The cycling
projects had been very successful whereas the Green Gym had not –
and was in fact in the process of being terminated. Lessons would be
learned for future projects from the successes and the failures.
The referral scheme was well supported by GPs and would have a
knock-on effect on health care costs by encouraging healthy lifestyle
and postponing illness and disease.
A Partner asked if the other eight Healthy Towns were running
schemes that might be adopted in Thetford and was advised that they
were all running totally different and much larger schemes which
would not be transferrable. However, there were other organisations
running smaller projects and much could be learned from them.
2

2

Local Strategic Partnership Board
29 July 2010
Action By

The Chairman asked how much funding had been received and the
proportion that had been spent on the community.
Tony agreed to bring a breakdown of expenditure to a future meeting
and advised Partners that the accounts were audited monthly by NHS
Norfolk.
In response to a question about marketing and communications, Tony
advised that a newsletter (detailing dates and information about
current projects) was included in the About Thetford magazine that
was delivered to every household in Thetford. There was also a
dedicated website.
The team went out into the community regularly to publicise their work
using a gazebo which they set up in locations such as the Market
Place, Sainsbury’s carpark, etc. They also targeted migrant cafes.
Most importantly they relied upon word-of-mouth and cross promotion
with other agencies and organisations.
A Partner said that it was critical to demonstrate the outcomes of the
programme to prove that it was worth investing in. Tony agreed. It
was not enough to change people’s habits temporarily; the change
had to be sustained to have been successful.
The Chairman thanked Tony for his report, which was noted.

32/10 VOLUNTARY SECTOR BRIEFING
Sadie Harvey (Assistant Director of Keystone Development Trust)
introduced herself and then gave Partners a PowerPoint presentation
giving a brief overview of the voluntary sector work which formed a
small part of the Trust’s operation.
KAVO (Keystone Area Voluntary Organisations) offered a range of
services, including a community grant scheme. Two current projects
funded by that scheme were Fast Track Furniture and Local Food
Group Box for which they were happy to take referrals. They also
organised training, targeted at community groups and arranged events
and activities.
Forthcoming events were a Conference on Friday 22 October –
Managing Change; Being Equipped for the Future at which there would
be a number of keynote speakers.
They were also organising the Thetford Charity Fun Day as part of the
Thetford Festival Week, which would involve lots of different
organisations and combine fundraising with reaching out to the local
community.
The Active Citizens programme which had been set up by the British
Council, also had lots of relevant themes and included partnership
working with organisations overseas with the aim of sharing good
practice and facilitating community relations and development.
3

3

Local Strategic Partnership Board
29 July 2010
Action By

KAVO’s programme was primarily interested in focussing on countries
in Eastern Europe to compliment the work done by META with migrant
workers from those areas now living in Thetford and Forest Heath.
A Partner asked for clarification of the term ‘under-represented groups’
used on the What is Active Citizens slide (page 33 of the agenda) and
Sadie advised that this referred to groups that did not currently
participate within the community.
It was clarified that there was no specific bid value and that although
partners were able to apply for grants and additional support there were
only small amounts of money available.
The Chairman was concerned that all the voluntary organisations were
delivering similar schemes and Sadie agreed that it could appear that
way, but that they worked closely to provide complimentary services.
Whereas Voluntary Norfolk served the whole county, KAVO did not do
voluntary placements and had been set up at a more local level
because people were reluctant to access services outside their
immediate area.
The Chairman said that with the impending loss of funding for some
public sector bodies in October it would be a challenge for the Council
to decide who to support. Hopefully there would still be money
available but it would need to be targeted at the right places.
The Chairman thanked Sadie for her presentation.
33/10 PARTICIPATORY BUDGETING (PB)
The Partnership (LSP) Officer reminded Partners of the decisions made
at the end of the last financial year, to award £25,000 to the Youth
Council and £5,000 to each of the market towns for Participatory
Budgeting (PB).
The Youth Council had funded eight projects and there would be a
presentation on 5 August to show the outcomes of those projects. This
scheme had been so popular that the Youth Council had allocated
£5,000 from its own budget for future PB projects.
A Member asked why none of the funding had been allocated to Watton
and it was pointed out that although applications had been submitted
from Watton they had not been successful. The decisions had been
made by the Youth Council (which included representatives from
Watton) without external influence.
88 projects had been put forward from the five market towns of which
67 were shortlisted and 49 were funded. Six monthly evaluations were
taking place to assess the success and outcomes from these projects.
The LSP Officer said that the scheme had achieved what it set out to do
and he wanted to promote it to a wider audience. He suggested that
future proposals would benefit from a greater team effort.
4

4

Local Strategic Partnership Board
29 July 2010
Action By

The Chairman asked if there were any volunteers for future funding and
a Partner suggested that they needed to know the outcomes from the
current scheme before making any commitment.
RESOLVED to:
(1)

note the contents of the report;

(2)

provide further publicity to the successful projects
utilising a broad range of media and linking it to the
mobile one stop bus and the ‘Vocal Local’ campaign;

(3)

submit a report to the next Board meeting evaluating the
project and the outcomes achieved to date; and

(4)

defer consideration of the proposal to undertake a further
‘Your Partnership Your Decision’ project until more
information on timelines and objectives was available.

34/10 FUTURE JOBS FUND (FJF)
The Partnership (LSP) Officer updated Partners on the Future Jobs
Fund which had secured 19 jobs in the district.
Six jobs had been offered at a hairdressing salon in Thetford over two
separate six month placements for three people each time. The first
three successful applicants began work in April. Since then one had
dropped out but the other two were doing well. The next three
candidates would be recruited in October.
One position had been offered by a Solicitor’s office in Watton and the
successful applicant had started work in April and was doing very well.
Eight places had been offered, by a partnership of Pride in Breckland,
Peddars Way Housing Association (PWHA). and Serco, to create an
environmental task force. Six employees had been recruited and had
commenced work on 19 July on a variety of community based projects.
Finally, four positions had been offered by PWHA. Unfortunately, due
to a reorganisation those jobs were unavailable and discussions were
underway to reallocate them within Breckland, subject to approval from
NCC.
The report was noted.
35/10 MIGRATION IMPACT FUNDING (MIF)
The Partnership (LSP) Officer advised Partners that the One Stop Bus
was in the car park outside and they were all welcome to have a look
round after the meeting.
The Bus had been at the Norfolk Show and would be at the Wayland
5

5

Local Strategic Partnership Board
29 July 2010
Action By

Show that weekend. It had started a rota visiting 18 locations and the
timetable was on the website.
Partners and Councillors were
encouraged to support the initiative and spread the word to ensure it
was sustainable.
The META service was working well and had received positive
feedback. Monthly monitoring reports were being done and figures
would be available for the next meeting.
Three submissions had been received for the arts project and
volunteers were sought to for a sub group to determine which project to
support.
A Member asked if the Mobile Bus was linking in with the mobile library
service and the mobile police station.
It was noted that as the mobile library already had a set timetable and
its stops were relatively short, it was not feasible to link with that.
However, the mobile police station had stopped and it was suggested
that it might be very useful to have a police presence on the Bus.
Inspector Wheatley agreed to look into that proposal.
RESOLVED to:
(1)

note the report;

(2)

approve the retention of the additional year 2 funding of
£15.000 as contingency funds or for it to be used to
attract additional match funding;

(3)

encourage Partners to consider how the mobile vehicle
could be used to deliver their services and to get other
Partners involved; and

(4)

delegate authority to Jan Godfrey, Val Jenkins and
Adrian Stasiak to review the arts project submissions
with the Partnership (LSP) Officer and the Arts Officer to
determine which proposal to support.

36/10 BUDGET
The Partnership (LSP) Officer advised that £100,011 had been received
from second home Council Tax and that there was £150,000
uncommitted budget for 2010/11 which included the current Officer post
during 2010/11.
37/10 FUTURE MEETINGS
The arrangements for the next meeting on Thursday 9 September 2010
were noted.

6

6

Local Strategic Partnership Board
29 July 2010
Action By

38/10 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from
the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds
that it involves the disclosure of exempt information as contained
in paragraph 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.
39/10 PARTNERSHIP (LSP) OFFICER CONTRACT
The Assistant Director, Communications and Communities presented
the report which sought agreement to fund the Partnership (LSP) Officer
post for an additional year from 2011/12. The current post was funded
until the end of March 2011.
He noted that the Officer had been successful in securing significant
funding for Partnership projects and suggested that the Officer could
also assist in refreshing the Sustainable Community Strategy which was
a statutory requirement.
RESOLVED to
(1)

agree to fund the Breckland Partnership (LSP) Officer for
an additional year (March 2011 to March 2012); and

(2)

agree that Breckland Council continues to act as host
employer for the Breckland Partnership (LSP) Officer
post.

The meeting closed at 3.40 pm

CHAIRMAN

7

7

BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP

Agenda Item 5a

PARTNERSHIP BOARD MEETING
Report of Rob Walker, Director of Community Services, Breckland Council
PRIDE IN BRECKLAND UPDATE

1.

Purpose of Report

1.1

The purpose of this report it to provide an update and overview of the Pride in
Breckland campaign.

2.

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Breckland Partnership Board:

2.1

Note the contents of the report.

3.

Information, Issues and Options

3.1

Background

3.1.1

The Pride in Breckland campaign is a key delivery vehicle for the Breckland
Partnership (LSP) and is intended to act as the catalyst for a variety of community
and partnership based projects or initiatives, which directly support Council priorities.

3.1.2

The Breckland Partnership (LSP) launched the Pride in Breckland campaign in July
2008. The projects objective is to address the long and short term issues, which
have a negative impact on community cohesion. To this end the project has the
following goals:
•
•
•
•

3.1.3

To improve the quality of life for all Breckland residents and to make the district
an even nicer place to visit
To develop the respect and sense of ownership in the local area
To expand relationships between different sections of the community
To encourage the sense of pride in the district

In its Business Plan for the financial years 2008/09 to 2010/11, Breckland Council
made provision for Pride in Breckland. The project was initially funded as part of the
Council’s Area Based Grant with an allocation of £200,000 over a 3 year period;
Year 1 08/09: £75,000
Year 2 09/10: £75,000
Year 3 10/11: £50,000

3.2.1

The project funding supports the appointment of a full time Project Coordinator role
over the three year period at Grade 8 level.
Remaining budget
2010/11 - £31,000
Completed Projects
Many projects and initiatives have been successfully delivered since the launch of
Pride in Breckland in July 2008. The following two projects are an example of what
has been recently achieved. A list of all completed projects and initiatives can be
found in Appendix A.

8

Wayland Celebration of Culture
On the evening of Saturday 4th September, Pride in Breckland hosted an evening of
cultural celebration at Watton Sports and Social Club. The aim of the night was to
introduce the residents of Watton to the various cultures that make up the town
through capawoira demonstrations, belly dancing, samba bands and bag pipe
playing. There was also food on offer from Poland, Portugal, Brazil and Lithuania.
In excess of 80 people attended during the night, split between 14 different
nationalities.
The Pride in Breckland Green Team (Future Jobs Fund Team)
Pride in Breckland’s environmental task force continues to deliver environmental
outcomes across Breckland’s communities. The task force assess, target and clean
up hot spot areas whilst carrying out projects where lack of volunteers have hindered
a project. Some of the projects tackled so far include;
• BMX track construction – Swanton Morley
• Wall conservation – Great Hockham
• Dyke clearance – Sporle
• Hedge trimming - Hardingham
3.2.2 Future projects
With the profile of Pride in Breckland continuing to rise, a variety of community based
projects and initiatives will continue to be delivered to help achieve the goals of Pride.
The following three projects are an example of what is currently planned. An entire list
of future projects can be found in Appendix B.
Pride in Breckland Youth Awards 2010
In conjunction with the Breckland Youth Council, Pride in Breckland will deliver an
awards ceremony on 22nd October to celebrate the young people of our district who
help us to make a difference. The awards are similar to the larger Pride in Breckland
Awards which will be delivered in March 2011.
Pride in Breckland Awards 2011
Pride in Breckland will once again deliver an awards ceremony similar to the event in
2009 which celebrates and rewards those people in our communities who help us to
make a difference. RAF Marham has kindly agreed to host the awards at their
barracks near Swaffham.
The Breckland Blitz II
During April and May, Pride in Breckland ran a community blitz campaign which
encouraged residents to do one small thing to help make their community cleaner and
greener in time for Spring. The project was a huge success thanks to over 100
volunteers arranging community litter picks across the district. With grass verges and
trees now beginning to die back for winter, Pride in Breckland will deliver the second
Breckland Blitz during November.

9

10

Date

A, B, D

B, D

Poppys Wood is 30 acres of land hidden in North Tuddenham. It was purchased by
Bernard Matthews in 1990, planted with thousands of trees and then given back to the
local community to enjoy. The apple pressing day was held in partnership with the
Wensum Valley Trust and it was another opportunity to involve the local community and
encourage them to take ownership of the wood. The day allowed people to pick native
apple varieties and then taste the juice once pressed in a traditional manner. A longest
apple peel competition was also held.

18+

22

09-Oct Graffiti Removal Kits

16-Oct Poppys Wood Apple Pressing Day

Press, radio

D

Pride in Breckland has purchased 4 x graffiti removal kits which are available for
members of the community to loan in order to remove graffiti from their personal property
or proactively from public buildings.
Press, radio

N/A

30-Sep Brecks Dragons Den

14

A, C, D

26-Sep Poppys Wood Maintenance Day

Pride in Breckland proudly sponsored the Brecks Dragons Den competition which
encouraged innovative small businesses in Breckland to compete for top prizes including
new premises by persuading a panel of judges that their business had the potential to
generate the highest profit potential to succeed.
Press, radio

B, D

27-Sep Gastronomic Food Festival - Swaffham 25

Press, radio

Pride in Breckland delivered the inaugural Community Ranger Conference at Barnham
Broom hotel. The conference helped Rangers to understand their role more as well as
learn about new projects that they can be involved with in their communities.

A, B, D

A, B, D

A, B, D

A, B, D

Press, radio

Press, radio

In conjunction with Environmental Services, Pride in Breckland arranged a river cleanse
of the rivers Thet and Ouse which pass through Thetford. A group of volunteers cleared
the river banks whilst a specialised contractor cleared the waters. Over 1 tonne of waste
was collected.
Pride teamed up with the Watton Youth Council to clean up the two war memorials
situated near to Carbrooke in Watton.

Pride Goal
Supported

Pride in Breckland proudly sponsored the Swaffham Community Food festival which was
organised by the Icieni Area Partnership. The event celebrated healthy food from across
all cultures in Swaffham.
Press, radio

42

02-Sep Community Ranger Conference

Media Coverage?

The Croxton Road underpass runs under the very busy A1066 in Thetford. It is a safe
haven for hundreds of school children and other pedestrians who need to cross the road
on a daily basis. The walls of the underpass are beautifully adorned with colourful murals,
placed there by pupils of Rosemary Musker High in memory of their friend Gary Smith
who was tragically knocked down and killed on the road in 1991. Over time the murals
and walls of the underpass have been graffiti's and defaced. With help from Rosemary
Musker pupils, Pride in Breckland removed the graffiti and cleaned the murals.
Press, radio

Info

Poppys Wood is 30 acres of land hidden in North Tuddenham. It was purchased by
Bernard Matthews in 1990, planted with thousands of trees and then given back to the
local community to enjoy. The trees are in desperate need of basic maintenance such as
pruning and sleeve removal. Pride in Breckland therefore teamed up with 1st Mattishall
Scouts to carry out a maintenance day.
Press

8

14

12

No's of
volunteers

13-Aug Thetford River Cleanse
Watton War Memorial clean up with
28-Aug Youth Council.

Graffiti Removal - Croxton Road
09-Jul Underpass

Event/Project

11

42

4

N/A

28-Oct Charles Close community clean up

31-Oct Halloween Helpers

05-Nov Operation Dampen Spirits

N/A

42

04-Dec Welcome Home Parade

24 Nov - 03 Dec

Tree Giveaway

4+

11+

Creation of International Environment
26-Oct Group

17-Nov Youth Council Pride team

11

Watton War Memorial clean up with
26-Oct YMCA group.

A, C, D

Pride in Breckland supplied high visibility tabards to Watton SNT to help them run their
Halloween Helpers event. The event was meant to give a presence on the streets of
Watton during Halloween to prevent ASB. No cases of ASB were recorded on the night.

A, B, D

B, D

Pride in Breckland ran a 'treemendous' event during National Tree Week (25th Nov - 6th
Dec). We gave away almost 3000 trees – all native to the UK – to residents who want to
help ‘green-up’ the environment. The trees were handed out on market days around the
district to Breckland residents on a first come served basis (one per person).
Press, radio
Breckland is proud of being the home of the Light Dragoons. The Light Dragoons and
their families are an integral part of our community, so it is important that we recognise
their bravery, extreme courage and great determination. Pride in Breckland was the
proud sponsor of the Welcome Home Parade which Breckland Council arranged in
December 2009.

Tv, press, radio

A, B, C, D

4 members of the Breckland Youth Council have formed a sub cabinet to take on Pride
related projects. The group is mentored by the Pride in Breckland Coordinator and the
Clean Neighbourhoods Enforcement Officer. Projects will be delivered throughout the
year.

Pride in Breckland joined forces with Police, Environmental Services and SERCO to
deliver Operation Dampen Spirits in Thetford. The aim was to remove bonfires and
combustible materials from Breckland owned green areas on the Abbey Estate and
reduce the number of illegal bonfires. Almost 2 tons of materials were removed with
enforcement being taken (3 Formal Cautions and 1 Fixed Penalty Notice plus costs were
issued). The fire service reported a 50% reduction overall in call outs within Thetford for
this night of the year. It is hoped that that the formal action taken this year will act as a
deterrent for future years
Press, radio

A, D

A, B, C, D

Press, radio

A, B, C, D

A, B, C, D

In conjunction with two local housing associations, Pride organised a community clean up
day to help residents have Pride in the community. Two skips were filled with waste and
the streets were cleared of litter by the residents.
Press, radio

Press, radio

All Breckland residents who care about their environment are being encouraged to come
together by Pride to form an International Environment Group in Thetford. The group is
helping to tackle all environment related issues in the town such as litter, graffiti removal,
recycling and waste reduction. This project is on-going.
Radio

Pride teamed up with the Right Direction Group to clean up the two war memorials
situated near to Carbrooke in Watton. The Right Direction Group is made up of school
children who can be disruptive during term time. Projects like these help to channel the
students energy and get them more involved in community activities.

12

A, D

A, B, C, D

Pride in Breckland has made a series of environmental improvements at Poppys Wood
to improve security and safety. The improvements made are extra bollards in the parking
area to prevent cars driving into the woods and the addition of a removable barrier on the
Lyng Road to prevent vehicles trespassing. More improvements will be made in 2010.
No
In conjunction with Wensum Valley Trust, Pride in Breckland arranged a conservation
day at Scarning Meadows. The area of land is a natural wetland which supports various
species of wildlife. Volunteers were encouraged to take part to help safeguard the area
for future generations. The volunteers have now formed a group who will meet once a
quarter to continue their conservation work.

Poppys Wood Environmental
29-Dec improvements

18

35

23

120

N/A

23-Jan Scarning Meadows Conservation Day

04-Feb Pride in Breckland Away Days

11-Feb Light Dragoons/Redcastle Furze Day

01-Mar The Breckland Blitz

05-Mar Bling Up Your Bin

N/A

A, B, D

A, B, C, D

A, B, C, D

A, B, D

Pride in Breckland is arranging away days for Breckland Council staff. The days not only
provide colleagues with a great way to build team spirit, but they also ensure that vital
community projects are being tackled. Teams have so far carried out conservation work
on Hoe Common; Decorated a village hall near to Swanton Morley ; created shrub beds
in Thetford; engaged in biodiversity work in North Tuddenham.
Press, Radio

Press, radio

Pride in Breckland arranged for 15 Light Dragoons to attend the Redcastle Furze
community centre in Thetford to help with the re-decoration of the building which is now
ran by The Benjamin Foundation. Pride in Breckland also supplied the paint.

A nine week spring clean type event across the district. The Blitz encouraged everyone to
do one small thing to help keep the district clean and green. Completed projects during
the Breckland Blitz included a community clean up of the Toftwood pond, a community
litter pick through Hoe and Worthing where 147 sacks of litter were collected, a school
litter pick with students from Attleborough junior school and a clean up of an industrial
estate in Thetford using members of staff from Breckland Council.
Press, radio
10 schools across the district have been given a litter bin to decorate in whatever fashion
they wish. They best design will win £200 for their school to go towards a Pride related
project. The project will help educate local children about the importance of binning litter. Press, radio

Press, radio

A, B, C, D

Shrub planting @ St Cuthberts Church
11
11-Dec and Bridge St

N/A

A, B, C, D

Tree Dressing Competition
Pride in Breckland worked in conjunction with Serco to plant shrubs in the flower beds of
the community garden at St Cutheberts in Thetford and in the flower bed next to the
bridge on Bridge St. Members of the International Environment Group helped to plant the
shrubs.
Press, radio

05 Dec - 11 Dec

Pride in Breckland has ran its own Tree Dressing competition in support of National Tree
Dressing Day which aims to encourage the celebration of trees in our communities. It ties
in with National Tree week and our pledge to give every resident a free tree. The whole
scheme highlights our responsibility for looking after trees and reminds us of their
enormous cultural and environmental importance. We asked residents to create their own
social celebration of the trees in their community through storytelling, dance, music,
hanging ribbons, shapes, shining lights, anything which draws attention to the trees we all
take for granted.
Press, radio

13
85

N/A

N/A

N/A

22-Jun World Record Attempt

19-Jul Future Jobs Fund Team

23-Jul Thetford Alleyway Project

30-Jul Wayland Jigsaw Competition

N/A

19-May Norfolk Police PPO Project

22

N/A

13-May Breckland Junior MasterChef

15-Jun Pride Corporate Away Days

13

24-Apr Pond Enhancement Project

School Lane Car Park, Thetford 15-Apr Posts painted
1

A, B, C, D

D

Pride enlisted the help of the Norfolk Wildlife Trust to undertake a study of three ponds in
Breckland (Hillcrest Pond, Toftwood; Neatherd Moor Pond, Dereham; Bawdeswell Pond,
Bawdeswell). The studies were completed in November and once the weather warmed
up a community pond enhancement day was arranged to make environmental
improvements to the Hillcrest Pond in Toftwood.
Press, radio
This project gave young Breckland residents a chance to show off their culinary skills.
The competition was similar to the BBC 'MasterChef' concept with competitors given a
selection of fresh local produce and asked to cook a three course meal. The final was
contested at Neathered High School between 5 young people from around the district
who all produced wonderful dishes. The winner won a cookery lesson with a local chef
who was recently voted the UK's best fish restrauntuer.

Press

Ran in conjunction with Wayland Chamber of Commerce this project is helping to
promote businesses that ,ake up the Wayland area. 30 shops each hold a different
section of a jigsaw which shoppers must put together. Everyone who completes a jigsaw
is entered into a prize draw to win an exciting prize.
Press, radio

Thetford Taskforce raised concerns about two notorious alleyways in Thetford town
centre. Pride was asked to take this project forward. Following Consultation has now
finished and installation will take place some time in Mar to April.

B, C, D

A, B, C, D

A, B, C, D

A, B, C, D

Pride in Breckland have set a Guinness World Record for the longest chain of plastic
bottles. The chain was a massive 1018m in length and used a total of 3900 bottles. The
idea behind the event was to raise awareness that plastic bottles are the only plastic that
residents can place into their wheeled bins. The record was set at Northgate School who
supplied pupils for the day. We were also joined by solders from the Light Dragoons.
Press, radio

Radio

A, B, C, D

Similar to the internal away days that Pride in Breckland now arranged, these days are
arranged for private businesses in the Breckland area. The first company to try the away
day experience was Tesco who tackled a conservation project in Gressenhall. The team
really enjoyed that day and have asked for a programme of away days for the coming 12
months.
Press, radio

Through the Future Jobs Scheme, Pride in Breckland has recruited 6 individuals to form
a Pride in Breckland green team to deliver environmental outcomes for the local
community. The task force assess, target and clean up ‘hot spot areas’ whilst educating
the community on ‘Green Living’ throughout the district.

B, D

In partnership with Norfolk Constabulary, Pride is providing community projects for
Prolific and Persistent Offenders (PPOs) in the Breckland area. The idea is to get PPOs
interested in giving something back to the community. This is a trial project which has
initially seen a PPO decorate the outside of The Anchor pub in Thetford in preparation of
the Dads Army Day. More projects will follow.

Press, radio

A, D

An unemployed painter and decorator volunteered to paint the bollards in the car park. In
return Breckland Council supplied him with a reference for his work. Since then, the
decorator has found permanent work through a Thetford based firm.
Press

14

24

12
N/A

30-Aug Light Dragoons Charity Cricket Match

04-Sep Wayland Celebration of Culture

23-Sep Honor Awards

D

C

B

A

Expand relationships between different
sections of the community.
Encourage the sense of pride in the
district.

Improve the quality of life for all
Breckland residents and to make the
district an even nicer place to work and
visit.
Develop the respect and sense of
ownership in the local area.

THE GOALS OF PRIDE IN BRECKLAND

N/A

05-Aug Swaffham Alley-way project.

A night of cultural celebration where the people of Watton came together to share music,
food, drink and dance from all corners of the world. The night saw belly dancing, bag pipe
playing, capawoira demonstrations, samba music as well as food samples from Poland,
Portugal, Brazil, Lithuania and Latvia. Over 13 different nationalities were represented on
the night and long lasting friendships were made.
Press, radio
In conjunction with the Environmental Health Food Team, Pride will be helping to launch
a healthy and hygienic food award for food premises in Thetford
Press, radio

Swaffham SNT has been set a priority to tackle issues that take place in an alleyway
between Market Place and Whitsands Rd in Swaffham. In partnership with Pride, the
alley-way has been cleaned. Plans to gate the alley-way have failed due to rights of way
laws.
Press, radio
Pride in Breckland joined forces with Dereham Cricket Club to host a cricket match in aid
of The Light Dragoons Charitable Trust.
Press, radio

A, D

A, B, C, D

B, C, D

A, B, D

15

Oct

Nov

Halloween Helpers

The Breckland Blitz II

B

D

C

Develop the respect and sense
of ownership in the local area.

A

Expand relationships between
different sections of the
community.
Encourage the sense of pride in
the district.

Improve the quality of life for all
Breckland residents and to
make the district an even nicer
place to work and visit.

THE GOALS OF PRIDE IN BRECKLAND

Oct

Oct

Apple Day

Wild About Norfolk

Jul-05

Ongoing

Pride in Breckland Green Team

Pride in Breckland Awards

Oct

Ongoing

Away days

Pride in Young People Awards

Oct-Dec

2011

Necton Computer Club

Litter bins in trunk road lay-bys

2011

Delivery Date

Cloverfields Ball Park, Thetford

Event/Project

A, B, C, D

A, B, C, D

In conjunction with Cloverfields Residents Assoc, Pride in Breckland will help to
transform the former ball park on site into something that the community can be
proud of.
This project is being funded via the community ranger fire assessment fund built
up by Mr Hector Lewis. Fo every fire assessment that Mr Lewis carries out on
behalf of the fire service in Breckland, he qualifies for £10 of joint Pride and Fire
Service grant

Ran in partnership with Watton Safer Nieghbourhood Team this event gives "Trick
or Treating" an official safe feeling. Responsible adults in high vis Pride vests will
be asked to walk around town with children, helping them to cross the road safely
and making sure that they respect people around them
A, B, C, D
Apples and folklore. A bee keeper talking about the relationship between apples
and bees and much much more.
A, B, C, D

This is an educational day for local schools to attend delivered in partnership
between PinB and Wensum Valley Trust. The day will involve Apples pressing,
biodiversity talks, information on Apples and folklore. A bee keeper talking about
the relationship between apples and bees and much much more.
A, B, D

Outdoor wildlife conservation fair designed to enthuse, inform and inspire the local
community about Norfolk Wildlife. Ran in partnership with Norfolk Wildlife Trust. A, B, C, D

Pride in Breckland will continue to arrange away days for internal and external
groups especially large private businesses such as Tesco. The groups will tackle
vital community projects.
A, B, C, D
Pride in Breckland is arranging a awards ceremony in partnership with the
Breckland Youth Council. The awards will recognise and celebrate the young
people of the district who are helping to make a difference.
B, C, D
The Pride in Breckland Green Team will continue to tackle projects across the
district.
A, B, C, D
The Pride in Breckland Awards will once again take place in 2011. They will be
launched in Nov.
A, B, C, D

Pride in Breckland has purchased a set of litter bins which will be distributed to the
many lay-bys along the trunk roads in Breckland (namely A47 and A11). This will
help tackle the problems we have of litter on our trunk roads.
A, B, D

Pride Goal Supported

Info

Agenda Item 5c
BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP
7 October 2010
Report of Adam Jackson, Service Connector Manager, Breckland Council
MIGRATION IMPACT FUNDING (MIF)
1.

Purpose of Report

1.1.1

To update LSP Board Members on the progress in delivering the Migration Impact
Funding project and the planned future activities.

1.1.2

To give an overview of the META project to date.

1.1.3

To give an overview of the mobile vehicle project to date.

1.1.4

Looking forward – developing both services.

2.

Recommendations
It is recommended that the LSP Board:

2.1.1

Note [for information and planning purposes] the contents of this report.

2.1.2

Consider partner’s commitment to the Migration Impact Funding project.

2.1.3

Considering current financial circumstances look at ways your service can get its key
messages and services to the heart of rural communities across Breckland using the
bus.

2.1.4

To consider the proposal to reduce the number of rural locations which will enable
the bus to visit further events similar to the Golden Age Fair, this will also enable the
team to schedule further industrial estate visits and look at developing the scope of
its service.

2.1.5

To let us know what services you provide and events that you attend that are
appropriate for the service connector team to link up with and or attend.

3.1

Background

3.1.1

A successful application as previously disseminated and discussed was made to Go
East and Communities and Local Government (CLG) and £220,000 was awarded in
the first year (09/10)
Following recruitment of the Service Connector team both the META service and
Mobile One Stop bus services were launched in June 2010.

3.1.2
3.2

Overview

META Service:
3.2.1 The META partnership is now fully operational with service connectors working with
the META team on Mondays and Tuesdays.
3.2.2

Transaction levels have been consistent and the need for this service proven.

3.2.3

Staff and customer relationships have been built with trust on both parts.

16

3.2.4

Services delivered vary across a range of partnership services and beyond but in the
main are Benefit, Tax and Housing orientated.

3.2.5

A variety of voluntary organisations have approached the team to link up with the
services provided through the META office.

3.2.6

META staff are actively looking at linking the service to the Mobile One Stop Bus in
the Thetford area.

Mobile One Stop Bus:
3.2.7

The bus has now reached 3 cycles of the 17 initial rural locations along with the
Thetford Abbey Estate.

3.2.8

Transaction numbers have been small but consistent across those locations and
feedback very positive.

3.2.9

Flyers and posters have been delivered to the locations and Councillors and village
magazines have been briefed and in some cases dialogue and support continues.

3.2.10 Further publicity in the form of a media event has proven difficult to organise.
3.2.11 The bus and team have attended the Wayland Show, a village fete and covered the
Dereham Council office whilst it re-located and have also arranged an estate cleanup in Thetford.
3.2.12 Peddars Way have shown support by attending some locations, voluntary
organisations are also using the bus as well as Councillors who have either attended
or used the bus in a ‘surgery’ context.
3.3

Looking forward

3.3.1

The mobile one stop bus is now looking at developing its service offer and will be
visiting a large industrial estate, feedback on this has so far been positive, if this
approach is successful the team would like to develop this branch further which could
mean reducing the service to less successful rural locations.

3.3.2

There are plans for the team to take the bus to town locations over weekends, this
would be in partnership with another service such as the ASBO team, this makes use
of existing staff and equipment and enables the scope of the service to expand and
potentially makes it more sustainable whilst also promoting the regular location visits.

3.3.3

Following the Dereham office cover the bus will now visit other town locations to
promote its service to those travelling into towns from rural locations.

3.3.4

The mobile one stop bus will be attending the Golden Age Fair and Town and Parish
Council Forum.

3.3.5

A media event will be linked to one of the above.

3.3.6

The META team will be linking up with the mobile one stop bus at appropriate
locations in order to assist with service delivery and deliver some of their initiatives
where possible.

3.3.7

Looking into the possibility of providing a NINO registration service on META days –
this service is currently offered by the DWP on an appointment basis.

3.3.8

The Service Connector team will be developing a deeper partnership with Keystone
by working on its worklessness project, the service provided as a result of the project
should combine with the service and knowledge that the team currently deliver.

17

4.1 Reasons for Recommendation(s)

4.1.1

The project has the potential to involve a broad spectrum of partners from the public,
private and voluntary and community sector which should be encouraged.

4.1.2

The project is flexible in its approach and therefore can be modified in order to deliver
a wide range of partnership functions such as consultation, training and skills,
engagement, accessibility, develop social cohesion and in order to better understand
the diverse communities we serve.

4.1.3

The rural and migrant communities represent a large proportion of our customer base
that the Breckland Partnership needs to engage effectively with and to deliver
according to their individual needs.

4.1.4

In order for the project and its services to continue to be developed and delivered it
must be sustainable. Bringing in other key partners who have a need to engage with
rural and migrant communities with relatively small cost through these outlets is a
suitable solution for all.

18

Migration Impact
Funding (MIF)
19

The META and Mobile One
Stop Bus projects – The
journey so far
Adam Jackson – Service Connector Manager

The META Service
Service Connector Officers seeing on average 20 people per day
META customers
30

25

20

10

5

0

28
/0
6/
20
05
10
/0
7/
20
12
10
/0
7/
19 2 01
0
/0
7/
20
26
10
/0
7/
20
02
10
/0
8/
20
09
10
/0
8/
16 2 01
0
/0
8/
20
23
10
/0
8/
20
30
10
/0
8/
06 2 01
0
/0
9/
20
13
10
/0
9/
20
10

20

15

Number of customers

Returning customers now request to speak to ‘Breckland’ staff showing an increase
in trust

The META Service
57% of enquires are Breckland services related, of these Housing and
Benefits are most in demand
Enquiry types

Non-Breckland
Housing
Benefits

21

Council tax
Complaints/Compliments
Streetscene
Card payment
Blue Badge
Bus pass
Environmental services
Development Control
General advice

The META service

22

Passport
Court
Job application
Tax Credit
Inland Revenue
Car Insurance
Employer issues
Voluntary working scheme
Anglian Water
Child access/support
Child benefit
Bank
Lettings reference
Other local authority
DWP
Job Centre Plus
Police
Peddars Way Housing
TV licence
Telephone bill
ESA
Mternity grant
Internet connection
Driving licence
Sixth form registration
NHS
County Council

Non-Breckland enquiries relate mainly to Inland Revenue and DWP

The Mobile One Stop Bus

23

Locations:
•
Narborough
•
Necton
•
Litcham
•
Elmham
•
Hockham
•
Shipdham
•
Mattishall
•
East Harling
•
Banham
•
Great Ellingham
•
Saham Toney
•
Swanton Morley
•
Bawdeswell
•
New Buckenham
•
Old Buckenham
•
Weeting
•
Mundford

24
Na
rb
or
ou
gh
Ne
Sa
ha cton
m
G
To
re
at
ne
El
y
li n
No
gh
am
rth
El
m
ha
m
L
O
it c
ld
Bu h am
ck
Ne
en
w
Bu h am
Sw cke
nh
an
am
to
n
M
or
Ba
le
y
wd
es
w
el
l
W
ee
tin
g
M
un
df
or
d
El
m
ha
m
Th
et
fo
rd
Ho
ck
ha
m
Sh
ip
dh
am
M
at
tis
ha
B a ll
nh
Ea
am
st
Ha
r li
ng

The Mobile One Stop Bus

12

10

8

6

4

2

0

July
August
September

In addition to the above in excess of 40 people were seen in Dereham,
and numerous others at the Wayland Show and Narborough Fun Day

The Mobile One Stop Bus
Working with us:

25

•
•
•
•
•

Flagship Housing
Voluntary Norfolk
Home Watch
Matthew Project
META

Looking forward…

26

• Brunel Industrial Estate – 800 employees, large migrant worker
contingent
• Towns – large generic audience, more targeted services, publicity
• Golden Age Fair – Large, elderly audience, publicity
• Town and Parish Forum – Building relationships with key members
of the community, promoting what we do and finding out what they
want
• Partnership working – META, Flagship… You?
• National Insurance Numbers – Possibility of providing this DWP
service
• Worklessness project – In partnership with Keystone tackling the
growing worklessness situation in Thetford

Agenda Item 6
BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP
5 November 2009
Report of Terry Scott, Operational Partnership Team
PARTICIPATORY BUDGETING (PB)
1.

Purpose of Report
To present to the LSP Board Members an application to enhance the ‘Your Norfolk Your
Decision’ - Year 2 Participatory Budgeting in Norfolk project.
A bid has been successfully applied for by the Breckland Operational Partnership Team
and a fund of £11,.666 has been granted by the CDRP and match funding is being
sought from LSP Board.

2.

Recommendations
It is recommended that the LSP Board:

2.1.1

Note [for information and planning purposes] the contents of this report.

2.1.2

To fund the PB process up to £11,666 to match fund the £11,666 granted by the
CDRP.

2.1.3

The Breckland Operational Partnership Team, together with members of the
Partnership Tasking and Co-Ordination Group to be involved in the planning and the
delivery of the PB process with the panels, but without a vote on decision day.

3.1

Background

3.1.1 A successful bid has been made to the CDRP for capital funding to enable a PB
project to be conducted, inviting bids from the community to help fund projects that
seek to address anti social behaviour issues. The LSP is asked to match fund this
grant in order to provide a continuance of the successful PB project already being
conducted under the ‘Your Partnership, your decision’.
3.1.2

The PB project consists of three key areas.
1. Bids will be invited from community based groups which specifically aim to
reduce the effects of anti social behaviour (this will not be restricted to specifically
targeting young people) on their communities.
2. Area-based Participatory Budgeting. Based on Breckland Council’s and Norfolk
Constabulary’s area based working arrangements, £4,000 will be made available
to each of the five Breckland ‘neighbourhoods’. A Community Panel – made up
of Elected Members, local community representatives and Breckland’s Youth
Council representatives – will be set-up and will directly involve local people in
making decisions on the allocation of funds for their ‘neighbourhood’.
3. Budget Training. Budget and PB training will be greatly reduced as a team of
panel representatives has been funded and trained under the original PB project.
There will still be an outlay for venue hire and out of pocket expenses. Total cost
£3,332

27

Area Based
3

3.1.3

The Area Based PB will consist of local ward members, residents volunteering from
the Citizen’s panel and a youth council member.

3.1.4

The database for the citizen’s panel will be used to approach members to seek their
voluntary involvement.

3.1.5

A panel will be set up in each of the ‘5’ areas to deliver their respective PB events.

3.1.6

Decision making events will take place across the district in January 2010.

3.1.7

Evaluating the PB process and the projects will be carried out by the panel members
and the applicants during the process and post the decision evening to ensure
projects are delivering the proposed outcomes.

3.2

Issues

3.2.1

The decision day/event must be held before 1st March 2011.

3.2.2

The expenditure of the projects must be completed by 31st March 2011.

3.2.3

The outcomes of the projects funded should be completed at 6 and 12 Month
intervals.

3.3

Options

3.3.1

To note [for information and planning purposes] the contents of this report

3.3.2

To agree / reject the Match Funding Bid.

3.3.3

To agree / not agree that the Breckland Operational Partnership Team, together with
members of the Partnership Tasking and Co-Ordination Group to be involved in the
planning and the delivery of the PB process with the panels, but without a vote on
decision day.

3.4

Reasons for Recommendation(s)

3.4.1 The Local Government White Paper of 2006 and the Lyon’s Report of 2007 provided
both an incentive and an opportunity for local authorities to adopt PB. The emerging
policies included:
•
•
•
•
•
•

A duty to “inform, consult and involve” citizens.
Accountability via information to citizens.
Local public ownership of assets.
More citizen and user choices.
Citizen involvement in debates on local priorities, services and budgets. and
Public engagement to be a “bottom up” rather than a “top down” process.

3.4.2 Local authorities are required by the Government to inform, consult and involve local
people; PB encourages local people getting involved, community cohesion and
improves democracy. It can be used to assist Local Strategic Partnerships and inform
strategies such as the Sustainable Community Strategy, the Local Area Agreement
and Comprehensive Engagement Strategies.
3.4.3 The funding awarded will provide the Breckland Partnership with a significant
opportunity to consult the community on their priorities and allow them to take decision
making at a local level.
3.4.4 The decision making at a local level will be fed up to the Breckland Partnership (LSP
Board) to ensure that common district wide issues are identified and addressed.

28

Agenda Item 7
BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP
07 October 2010
Report of Rob Walker, Director of Community Services, Breckland Council
NORFOLK COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP
AND OPERATIONAL PARTNERSHIP TEAMS

1.

Purpose of Report

To inform and update the Breckland Partnership Board on the development of a countywide
Community Safety Partnership and the roll out of Operational Partnership Teams.
2.

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Breckland Partnership Board:

2.1

3.

Note for information purposes the contents of this report.

Background

3.1 In April 2010 the County Strategic Group (Crime Reduction) agreed that in the interests
of efficiency and economy the seven district based community safety partnerships
(CSPs) would be merged into a single CSP for Norfolk.
3.2 This approach will fulfil the statutory requirements placed on the Responsible Authority
Partners under the provisions of the 1998 Crime and Disorder Act (1998).
3.3 The countywide CSP will agree strategic priorities for community safety encompassing
crime, disorder, anti-social behaviour, behaviour adversely affecting the environment,
substance misuse and actions required will be based on a sound evidence base.
3.4 Please see Appendix 2 for the draft Terms of Reference for the countywide CSP.
3.5 Negotiations have also been taking place between Norfolk Constabulary and the district
authorities working towards collaborative or co-located partnership teams. In each
district, Norfolk Constabulary has dedicated an Inspector lead from the Community
Safety Team and specialist officers including; crime reduction, architectural liaison and
ASB reduction to work alongside partner agency colleagues.
3.6 Please see Appendix 1 for a CSG (Crime Reduction) report on Operational Partnership
Teams.
3.7 The Operational Partnership Team in Breckland is already established and is co-located
at Elizabeth House, Dereham.
4.

Issues

4.1 Under the proposals listed above and in the appendices, Breckland will not have a
dedicated Community Safety Partnership and this function will be picked up at the
county level.
4.2 For local issues there will be a district wide Partnership Operation Group - involving a

29

nominated District Councillor - that will not have a strategic function but will have
responsibility for partnership-led tasking and prioritising of work and initiatives.
4.3 As detailed above, the Operational Partnership Team in Breckland is already
established and co-located. 4 specialist officers from Norfolk Constabulary and 3
officers from Breckland Council’s community safety unit make up the Team and operate
from Elizabeth House.
4.4 It is important that the Breckland Partnership Board is made aware of these significant
changes to community safety provision within Breckland. Although there is a risk that
strategic influence and direction is reduced in Breckland by the shift to a single
countywide CSP; this risk is mitigated by reduction in administration and bureaucracy
and an enhanced focus locally on operational delivery and evidence led solutions.
5.

Options

5.1

To note for information purposes the contents of this report.

6.

Reasons for Recommendation(s)

6.1 N/A
Appendix 1: Draft proposals for Operational Delivery of CSP priorities at District level
Appendix 2: Countywide Community Safety Partnership (CCSP) Terms of Reference

30

Appendix 1:
Draft proposals for Operational Delivery of CSP priorities at District level

1

Introduction and Background

1.1
Agreement has been reached in principle to establish a Norfolk (county-wide) Community
Safety Partnership (CSP). The Partnership will meet as a strategic partnership responsible for
delivering the ‘Safer’ outcome of Norfolk Local Area Agreement (LAA) and statutory requirements
under the Crime & Disorder Act 1998.
1.2
A Working Group is meeting to prepare for the change from District based CSPs to a single
county Partnership. The Group has been tasked with developing a structure to maintain and
enhance operational delivery at local (District) level. New structures and processes will work to an
evidence based approach taking account of the prevailing environment of financial efficiency and
delivering better with less.
1.3
This paper is intended to provide more detailed proposals guiding partners towards a
consensus as to how ‘geographically based delivery processes’ should work. The outline has
already been agreed by the Safer Norwich Partnership although it is acknowledged that there
needs to be a local fitness for purpose taking account of structures and differences in working
practices at District level.
2

District Operational Partnership Team(s)

2.1
Negotiations have been taking place between the Constabulary and District Authorities
working towards collaborative or co-located partnership teams. In each District, Norfolk
Constabulary has dedicated an Inspector lead from the Community Safety Team and specialist
officers including; crime reduction, architectural liaison and ASB reduction to work alongside
partner agency colleagues. The Police element of each Team provide day to day links with Safer
Neighbourhood Teams (SNTs) as well as easy access to other policing services such as licensing,
diversity, youth engagement, etc.
2.2
As the ‘operational partnership teams’ develop and become more efficient they will benefit
from the same working relationships with other agencies such as Trading Standards, Norfolk Fire
Service and local Childrens’ Services providers as well as the third/voluntary sector within their
District. It is intended that the Teams will make advances towards integrated service delivery. They
will certainly become more effective at advocacy for partner agencies even when they are based
elsewhere.
2.3
By definition these Teams need to be operationally focussed. As such there will be minimal
administration and they should not be expected to devote time and resource away from that
operational focus.
3

Role and responsibilities of Operational Partnership Teams

3.1
•
•
•

The ‘OPT’ will have responsibility for assessing intelligence, risk and priority of:
neighbourhood problems and issues,
geographical hotspot locations,
Vulnerable people including repeat callers and victims and perpetrators (including crime
and asb).

3.2
Predictive trends evidenced by analysis will be integrated into the Strategic Assessment
process allowing for multi-agency planning to meet future demand. The Team will work to a Control
Strategy drawn from the District Strategic Assessment. This is a set of priorities based on evidence

1

31

shared and agreed coming out of the Strategic Assessment process. The Team will also be in a
position to manage stakeholder enquiries including ‘community call for action’ by assessing and
co-ordinating appropriate responses or signposting these to the best partner agency to do that.
3.3
Within the control strategy some operational priorities will emerge and the OPT will have
responsibility for co-ordinating the most appropriate delivery mechanism:
• For high risk individuals this could be an ASBAG or other multi-agency arrangements
relevant to the area which would be commissioned by the local ASB Co-ordinator or that
person’s representative.
• For neighbourhood management or locational issues there could be a District wide
Partnership Operation Group (POG formerly called PTCG) or an enhanced version of a
local partnership meeting/ group such as a local Panel involving the District Councillor.
• The assessment process may also identify the need for more of a multi-agency Command
Team, this would be relevant in the early stages of response to a critical incident.
3.4
With regards to who would Chair these multi-agency meetings it really depends on the
issue. However, decision making for each OPT will go via the Senior Officer representative from
participating agencies to make sure that the right level of resource are available for use.
3.5
Due to the dynamic nature of Operational Partnership Team work and the availability of
analysis from daily to long term context, it is not proposed to fix a schedule of meetings but take a
flexible approach. In addition the team will work to a ‘predictive calendar’ of demand and hotspots
occurring throughout the year. The Team supervisor will be responsible for notifying Senior Officer
leads of events and priorities necessitating a meeting (of one of the types above).
4

Accountability for delivery

4.1
OPTs will have a nominated person who will be responsible as the single point of contact
(SPOC) leading dialogue with partner stakeholders. The SPOC will be agreed in local dialogue
with partners at District level. In some cases the individuals are already in place as Police
Sergeants have been dedicated to the Teams. Norfolk Constabulary has committed to provide a
manager (Inspector or Chief Inspector) overseeing each OPT and working directly to the Senior
Officer representative in Norfolk CSP.
4.2
The Constabulary has already committed analytical support to deliver the Strategic
Assessment and ‘Tactical Assessment’ products for each District allowing Teams to identify
priorities and scope issues for problem solving. It is intended that performance in solving local
problems will be tracked using analytical products ‘results analysis’ and via the actions log from
relevant ‘Partnership Operations Group’ meetings.
4.3
A pilot is under way in Breckland OPT to collaborate, sharing partner data on anti-social
behaviour. This is being overseen by the QUEST Team on a consultancy basis on behalf of the
Constabulary and partners in the District. Subject to success in the pilot, QUEST will facilitate roll
out of data sharing to enable a more holistic neighbourhood problem solving process for all partner
stakeholders.
4.4
Outcome measures will be found in the benchmark analysis in the Strategic Assessment
and performance monitoring reports for the County CSP.
5

Future proofing – Neighbourhood Management

5.1
Bearing in mind the backdrop of improving both efficiency and effectiveness of delivery, it
has been recognised that OPTs present an opportunity to act as the operational hub for
neighbourhood management in its broader sense.

2

32

5.2
By extending the remit of the Team to incorporate current and future neighbourhood
management processes there can be synergy and economies of scale ‘assessing intelligence, risk
and priority’ of local concerns raised through SNTs, local Housing Authority, RSL’s, Neighbourhood
Engagement Officers, etc.
5.3
It is felt that the core work in reducing crime and anti-social behaviour and improving public
confidence could easily be built on to cover local issues outside of these areas.
5.4
This would then lend itself to local public facing engagement events, under the Norfolk
Community Safety Partnership umbrella, ‘Community Safety Fora’. These are already seen in
other parts of the country as good practice in community priority setting and for multi-agency
consultation satisfying statutory requirements and partners’ ambition to face the public in the most
cost effective way.
6

Branding of District Operational Partnership Teams

6.1
The ‘OPT’ label has been chosen to best represent the make up and aims of District based
co-located Teams. In most of the existing District CSPs there is a brand identity already in use, for
example, ‘the Safer Norwich Partnership’.
6.2
It is proposed that formal documentation from OPTs are branded with the District logo and
the logo representing the Norfolk CSP.
6.3

Communication and marketing involving OPTs should also promote these brand logos.

3

33

Appendix 2:
Countywide Community Safety Partnership (CCSP) Terms of Reference
Background
1. In April 2010 the County Strategic Group (Crime Reduction) decided that in the
interests of efficiency and economy the merging of the 7 district based
community safety partnerships (CSPs) into a single CSP for Norfolk. This
approach would fulfil the statutory requirements placed on the Responsible
authority Partners under the provisions of the 1998 Crime and Disorder Act
(1998).
The Responsible Authorities Partnerships (RAP)
2. The statutory responsibility is discharged by the Responsible Authority
Partnership (hereafter called the CCSP) which is a strategic group composed of
the responsible authority partners identified under the legislation (Crime and
Disorder Act 1998, Police Reform Act 2002, Police and Justice Act 2006 and
Policing and Crime Act 2009). The responsible authorities are:
• District Councils
• Norfolk County Council
• Norfolk Constabulary
• Norfolk Police Authority
• Norfolk Fire Authority
• Norfolk Primary Care Trust
• Norfolk Probation Area
Role and functions
3. The Norfolk CCSP will:
•
•
•

•

•

•

•

comprise the responsible authority partners at CEO level or by named
substitute;
ensure compliance with all relevant legislation and guidance including the
CSP Hallmarks of successful partnership working (see 9);
agree strategic priorities for community safety encompassing crime, disorder,
anti-social behaviour, behaviour adversely affecting the environment,
substance misuse and actions required will be based on a sound evidence
base;
commission and consider regular strategic intelligence assessments informed
by consultation and engagement and develop a rolling partnership plan to
deliver the strategic priorities both collectively and locally;
inform and be informed by the priorities and targets contained within the
Norfolk wide crime and disorder strategic assessment, and Norfolk Local
Area Agreement (LAA);
commission action to tackle priorities using funds allocated from the Safer
and Stronger LAA block together with any resources made available by
partner organisations;
Provide statistical data at both County and District level as required to ensure
an evidence based approach is taken;

34

•

•

•

•

use an agreed performance management framework, to oversee
performance, the implementation of the rolling partnership plan and remove
barriers to performance improvement;
ensure there is liaison with other partnerships and organisations with shared
areas of responsibility. The CCSP will work in co-operation with the Drug and
Alcohol Action Team, the Norfolk Criminal Justice Board, and the Norfolk
Youth Offending Team, and Victim Support;
champion the implementation of partners responsibilities under section 17 of
the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to carry out their various functions with due
regard to the need to do all they reasonably can to prevent crime and
disorder;
monitor and evaluate the implementation of projects and activities and their
impact on crime and anti-social behaviour.

Membership
4. Member organisations will determine the most appropriate representative but
attendees should be chief officer level or attend with delegated authority from
chief officers to ensure effective strategic leadership and compliance to
legislation.
5. The Norfolk County Council portfolio holder responsible for community safety will
have a seat on the CCSP.
6. The membership of the CCSP should be limited to ensure that it is able to act as
an effective leadership group.
This will not, however, preclude other
organisations attending when specific issues relevant to them are being
addressed.
Partnership Operations Group (POG)
7. To support the CCSP various Partnership Operations Groups (POG) will be
established to ensure that local/district based issues are managed and resolved.
The POG will:
•
•

plan and implement events and activities from the annual diary based on
predictive analysis
act as the connection between Safer Neighbourhood Teams and the CCSP
and refer issues both strategically and tactically as appropriate

8. POGs will have a standing membership and will meet when required but at least
quarterly.
Hallmarks
9. New national standards have been developed for CSPs, which set out to deliver
consistently high performing partnership work. These are referred to as the
hallmarks for effective partnership working. The CCSP will be responsible for
ensuring that the national standards are adhered to. These require the CSP to:
•
•

provide strategic leadership for Norfolk
prepare and implement a strategic assessment and a partnership plan

35

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

have a clear meeting structure
involve other bodies and agencies
have clear governance arrangements defining roles and responsibilities
at least annually test whether the CSP has the necessary skills and
knowledge to meet the statutory duties and where necessary take corrective
action e.g. training and development
be signed-up to and comply with an information sharing protocol
identify other parties who could/should sign up to, and comply with the
protocol
share personal information when necessary and appropriate
hold one or more public meetings attended by senior officers to listen to
issues from the public and report back on actions that have or will be taken to
tackle crime and disorder priorities
ensure all sections of the community, including minority and hard to reach
groups are engaged
incorporate information collected from community engagement in the
partnership action plan
provide regular feedback to communities
have access to analytical support to develop the strategic assessment
embed a problem solving approach and evaluate its work
work to identify those most vulnerable and at risk
ensure that work is undertaken and performance managed at the appropriate
level

Decision Making
10. The CCSP will as far as possible be run on consensual lines, should there be a
requirement when unanimity is not available, only those members recognised in
Appendix A will be entitled to vote.
Funding
11. The CCSP will agree the priorities, targets and desired outcomes and the
programmes and activities to be put in place to deliver these in the rolling
partnership plan, using available funding. These will be based on the priorities
identified in the strategic assessment.
12. Where funding is provided from the area based grant, the CCSP will commission
projects in accordance with guidance which is consistent with Norfolk County
Council’s responsibilities as the accountable body.
13. Where other sources of funding are made available, the appropriate agencies
guidance will be used. Progress on projects will be plotted through SPARK Data,
the Norfolk wide project management system.
Governance
14. The CCSP will be chaired by a chief officer from one of the responsible
authorities and will be elected on an annual basis. A vice-chair will also be
appointed from amongst the partners on an annual basis.

36

15. The CCSP will meet at least four times a year and the meetings will be
coordinated with the availability of quarterly performance monitoring data.
Additional meetings may be held as the need arises and these will be agreed by
the Chair.
Quorum and decision making
16. The quorum for a meeting of the CCSP shall be that at least 10 of the statutory
Responsible Authority Partners be present
17. The majority of decisions will be reached through consensus, rather than a voting
procedure. A voting procedure based on a simple majority, will be used unless
regulations or legislation stipulates otherwise, if it is required when:
•
•
•

a decision is required that will commit finance; or
a consensus cannot be reached; or
in exceptional circumstances to be decided by the chair.

18. When the CCSP meets, this voting procedure will be a show of hands. When
voting takes place, there will be one vote per statutory partner present. In case of
a tied vote on any question, the chair of the meeting will have a second casting
vote.
The role of individual CCSP members
19. Members of the CCSP will be expected to:
•
•

•

ensure effective two-way communication between CCSP and their host
organisations, at both a strategic and operational level
ensure relevant issues / developments from their area of work are added to
the agendas of the relevant CCSP meetings, particularly where members
can identify gaps, overlaps or conflicts in service provision locally
use their personal skills, experience and networks to ensure that the
partnership is effective and is addressing strategic and local needs, and to
promote Norfolk as a safe county wherever possible.

Nolan principles of public life and code of conduct
20. All members of the CCSP are required to act in accordance the following Nolan
principles:
•

•

•

•

Selflessness: take decisions solely in terms of the public interest. CCSP
members should not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits
for themselves, their family, or their friends.
Integrity: not place themselves under any financial or other obligation to
outside individuals or organisations that might influence them in the
performance of their official duties.
Objectivity: In carrying out public business, including making public
appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards
and benefits.
Accountability: be accountable for their decisions and actions to the public
and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their role.

37

•

•

•

Openness: be as open as possible about all the decisions and actions that
they take. They should give reasons for their decisions and restrict
information only when the wider public interest clearly demands.
Honesty: have a duty to declare any private interests relating to their public
duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects
the public interest.
Leadership: promote and support these principles by leadership and
example.

21. In addition and where applicable, CCSP members should have regard to their
own internal codes of conduct, particular to the organisation they represent.
Declarations of interest
22. At the outset of any CCSP meeting, members will declare any conflict of interest
they may have with any specific agenda item(s). If necessary and/or appropriate,
the chair will ask that individual member to abstain from the discussion and/or
leave the room for any decisions required.
Openness
23. Membership of the CCSP is published and contact details of partners are held
and maintained by the Norfolk County Council Community Safety Team
24. All meetings will be open to the public as observers (i.e., no speaking or voting
rights) and minutes of the meeting (subject to confidential items) are available on
request from the Norfolk County Council Community Safety Team
Performance management and accountability
25. The CCSP is responsible for delivery of the targets contained in the partnership
plan and as such must ensure appropriate mechanisms for performance
management and accountability.
Risk and opportunity management
26. A robust and effective partnership governance structure and performance
management arrangements are essential elements in managing risk. The CCSP
will apply risk management principles to its work and will analyse and review risk
on an ongoing basis.
27. Norfolk County Council’s scrutiny committee has the primary scrutiny
responsibility and undertakes to review performance on an annual basis.
Secretariat for the CCSP
28. Norfolk County Council will provide the secretariat for the CCSP through the
Community Safety Team. Support will include (but is not limited to):
•
•
•

organising events and meeting venues
distributing agendas and taking minutes
developing a range of documents, from drafting papers for consideration at
board meetings to coordinating the development of the partnership plan.

38

29. Agenda and supporting papers will be circulated one week prior to meetings.
Minutes will be distributed one week following meetings.
Information Sharing
30. Data, including personal data where it is necessary to achieving the required
outcomes, will be shared by all partner organisations. Confidentiality statements
will be used as appropriate to remind members at meetings of their
responsibilities. All data sharing will be carried out in compliance with the Norfolk
CSP information sharing protocol or such subsequent protocols as may be
established. Section 115 of the Crime and Disorder Act will be complied with by
all partners.
Section 115 of the Crime & Disorder Act
31. Section 115 of the crime and disorder strategy states that “any person who [apart
from this section] would not have power to disclose information to a relevant
authority or to a person acting on behalf of such an authority, shall have power to
do so in any case where the disclosure is necessary or expedient for the
purposes of any provision of this Act.” Public bodies can only disclose
information if they have the power to do so.
32. Section 115 provides a power to exchange information where disclosure is
necessary to support the local crime and disorder strategy or objectives outlined
within it, which must be primarily aimed at reducing crime and disorder in
accordance with the Act’s provisions.
33. The police have an important and general power at common law to disclose
information for policing purposes, which includes the prevention, detection and
reduction of crime.
34. However, some other public bodies, which collect information, may not previously
have had power to disclose it to the police and others. This section puts beyond
doubt the power of any organisation to disclose information to Chief Officers of
Police, police authorities, local authorities, probation committees, health
authorities, or to persons acting on their behalf. These bodies also have the
power to use this information.
35. It should also be noted that Section 115 provides a power to share information - it
does not contain an overriding requirement to disclose. Nor, does this power
override other legal obligations such as the common law duty of confidence, the
requirements of the Human Rights Act, compliance with the 1998 Data Protection
Act or other relevant legislation governing disclosures.
Equal opportunities
36. The Norfolk CCSP has a duty and is committed to:
•
•
•

eliminating unlawful discrimination on the grounds of race, disability, gender,
age, sexual orientation or religious belief
promoting equality of opportunity
promoting cohesive communities.

39

37. The CCSP will ensure that the different needs of members are taken into account
(eg, physical access, ensuring participation) and that all participants are regarded
as equal.
38. The CCSP is committed to meeting the needs of individuals and their
communities.
Norfolk CCSP – voting rights
Membership
Voting rights – those with a statutory Non-voting rights
responsibility
Norfolk Drug & Alcohol Action Team
Norfolk Youth Offending Team
District Councils
Government Office Representative
Norfolk County Council
Norfolk Police Authority
Officers from partner agencies
Norfolk Fire Authority
Norfolk PCT
Norfolk Constabulary
County Councils Elected Member with the
Norfolk Probation Area
portfolio for Community Safety

40

Agenda Item 8
BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP
07 October 2010
Report of Mark Fretwell, Partnership (LSP) Officer, Breckland Council
The Breckland Partnership – Its Future Role?
1.

Purpose of Report

1.1

To update the LSP Board Members on an ever changing landscape influenced by a
wide range of emerging policy changes at all levels of government.

1.2

To reach agreement on the preferred approach in updating the current Sustainable
Community Strategy for Breckland, this ends in 2011.

1.3

To recommend conducting a full review of the Breckland Partnership in its current
format and to explore future working arrangements to ensure it is fit for purpose.

2.

Recommendations
It is recommended that the LSP Board:

2.1

Note [for information and planning purposes] the contents of this report.

2.2

To refresh the Sustainable Community Strategy (due to expire in 2011) so it is fit for
purpose in light of the changing context in which it and the partnership operates.

2.3

To agree to the outlined process and the timescales for sign off in refreshing the SCS
as outlined in the report. (A further more detailed report to be submitted at December
Board meeting).

2.4

To carry out a full review of the Breckland Partnership in conjunction with the strategy
refresh to include the current delivery structure, performance, funding allocation and a
proposed structure moving forward to deliver the refreshed SCS.

3.

Background

3.1 A LSP Challenge session took place on the 27th June involving the county and district
Local Strategic Partnership (LSPs). In order to review how we work together and
identify opportunities for improvements.
3.2

There was consensus to improve the current joint working arrangements and to
simplify how we deliver our respective partnerships and their interactions.

3.3

This is in line with Government thinking and the need to review current working
practises across all partners is high on the agenda in light of the spending review.

3.4

The changing landscape locally and nationally in delivering through partnerships is
evident in the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•

The development of a Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP)
A review of the Norfolk Public Services Leaders Board
Changes to the Norfolk Children and Young People’s Trust
The development of Place Based Budgets
The localism and Big Society agenda
New requirements for a Health & Wellbeing Board

41

4.

Issues

4.1

LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS

4.1.1 No specific Government statements have been made on the future of LSPs, in terms
of their role and responsibilities. On the one hand, the trend towards localism,
greater autonomy, and more freedoms should strengthen the role of these bodies.
On the other hand, the uncertain future of LAAs and Total Place, and the abolition of
CAA, means that the former regular workload of LSPs and their thematic subpartnerships has changed in a short space of time. Some of the dynamics which
brought (and kept) local partner agencies to a shared table are no longer there,
recent evidence even suggests some are looking to abolish their LSP.
4.1.2 Many LSPs are in the process of reviewing their sustainable community strategies to
meet difficult challenges ahead, and will be looking for ways of making savings
through closer joint working with partners, shared asset management, and possible
workforce integration. These activities are clearly very relevant to the new
Government’s agenda.
4.1.3 LSPs also have an important potential role in addressing the questions set in the
Spending Review Framework on the shifting boundaries between citizen and state.
4.1.4 Future arrangements for ‘governance of place’ will also be affected by Government
plans for widening democratisation and local accountability across primary health
care and policing.
4.2

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY

4.2.1 Councils and LSPs are free to choose the format and content of their SCS and how
they wish to draw up and publish them, a wide range of formats have been used.
4.2.2 Section 4(3) of the 2000 Local Government Act, as amended by Section 114 of the
Act, Districts are simply under a duty to consult and seek the participation of such
organisations and people as they consider appropriate. As Communities and Local
Government guidance explains, the statutory requirement to prepare a SCS applies
to both district and county councils. Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972
permits a local authority to discharge any functions jointly with another.
4.2.3 Sharing data and statistics across the partner agencies within a LSP has also
developed quickly in recent years and remains a key feature of effective joint working
at a local level.
4.2.4 The role of LSPs in defining targets within a LAA looks to have ceased, given that a
further round of LAAs post-2011 is not expected. But LSPs, and their thematic subpartnerships, will have a continuing role in doing ‘more for less’ and in reconfiguring
public services at a time of cutbacks in public expenditure.
4.2.5 Local partnership working will change significantly following new policies introduced
by the coalition government. New 'Health and Wellbeing Boards' will have a
statutory status, and a defined role in relation to GPs commissioning NHS services,
health improvement, and public health. Directly-elected police commissioners will
need to choose how they work alongside community safety partnerships and crime
and disorder reduction partnerships.
4.2.6

LSPs still remain something of an experiment in collaborative governance for local
areas. In statutory or formal terms, their accountability to make big decisions on the
future for their area remains weak. And yet, no other body is available to take an
overview across public services and to make collective choices on behalf of their
areas.

42

4.3

FUTURE OF BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP

4.3.1 In light of the necessity to refresh the SCS it seems a valuable opportunity to review
the Breckland Partnership in its current format in conjunction with the SCS.
4.3.2

Set out below are ‘4’ stages briefly outlined that we need to build on in refreshing
the SCS and reviewing the Breckland Partnership. Together with the key dates for
the LSP Board meetings and the Council committee meetings where approval
needs to be granted

4.3.3 ‘SCOPING STAGE’ (October / November)
Set up a review and project team:
• Partnership (LSP) officer
• Performance Team
• Member
• Director
• Key managers
• Partner(s)
A full review of current Sustainable Community Strategy:
• What is still relevant?
• What needs updating?
• What gaps/barriers exist?
• What has been the focus?
• Local Spending Review – implications for future?
A full review of the Breckland Partnership:
Structure, membership, achievements, strengths & weaknesses, performance
management, communications, accountability, project management etc
Design and distribute a partner questionnaire:
• Key priorities and focus
• Future commitment of time and resources
• Evidence of need and consultation data
• Links to current strategies or projects
Partners One to One interviews (if required):
Discuss the SCS refresh, priorities & LSP moving forward
4.3.4 ‘TESTING STAGE’ (December / January)
3rd Dec LSP Board meeting
Review updates on progress in refreshing SCS and review of Partnership, seek
Board direction and respond accordingly
• Update report on SCS refresh and Breckland Partnership
• Complete partner One to One interviews
• Identified gaps or barriers highlighted deliver a coordinated & targeted
response
• Draft sections of SCS tested with relevant partners & community
• Collate and analyse data and evidence align with
4.3.5 ‘DRAFT STAGE’ (February / March)
3rd Feb LSP Board meeting
Draft SCS or sections submitted and seek Board direction and respond accordingly

43

Feb/Mar - Post Board meeting
• Amendments to SCS
• Any gaps or issues identified resolved
• Testing through partners and community forums and stakeholder events e.g
Youth Council, Police panels
March (TBA) - Away day / workshop
• Focussed on SCS refresh & Breckland Partnership moving forward
• Celebration of achievements to date discus the future context
4.3.6 ‘APPROVAL STAGE’ (April / May)
7th April LSP Board meeting
Agree and ratify the proposed SCS/Structure 2011 and beyond.
• 20th April Submission report and papers to Breckland Council Committees
• 27th April C.M.T approval
• 9th May Executive Board
• 10th May Cabinet
• 12th May Full Council
• 19th May LSP Board (launch & publicity of SCS & Partnership)
4.3.7 A process of continuous data and evidence collection and analysis will be carried out
through to the approval stage to include:
• Place survey results
• MORI Survey report
• Budget setting priorities
• Local Development Framework consultation
• Partners consultation and evidence of priorities
• Community focus groups
• Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)
• Norfolk Insight data
4.3.8 The need to ensure both the SCS and the Breckland Partnership are fit for purpose
for the future is essential in order to deliver value for money and to continue to
deliver valuable projects for the communities we serve.
4.3.9 Due to the tight timescales to achieve the above there will need to be some flexibility
in the approach and it will require partners to support the process throughout.
5.

Options

5.1

To note [for information and planning purposes] the contents of this report.

5.2

To ‘support’ the recommendations put forward in this report.

5.3

To ‘not support’ the recommendations put forward in this report.

5.4

To ‘part support’ the recommendations put forward in this report.

6.

Reasons for Recommendation(s)

6.1

The LSP Board giving approval to a full review of the Breckland Partnership will allow
the Breckland Partnership to better understand its current position and the
opportunities and challenges in the future.

6.2

The Breckland Partnership to perform effectively and to deliver sustainable outcomes
requires the full support of all its partners to determine the priorities and to focus its
resources in the most efficient way.

6.3

The refresh of the Sustainable Community Strategy is a requirement under Local
Government Act 2000 this provides a great opportunity to review the partnership and
its functionality to ensure we are well placed to deliver our priorities and ensure we
are fit for purpose.

44

6.4

The changing political, social and economic landscape necessitates the need to
reflect, understand and make changes to ensure the sustainability of the partnership
by ensuring it is resistant to outside influences and delivers value for all.

6.5

The Governments has made its priorities of reducing public sector spending,
decentralisation and empowering communities clear. Whilst as part of the devolution
agenda it is being left to local areas to identify the most appropriate way forward.

45

